
PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Wednesday, December 12, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. 
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
Materials – Agenda, Minutes to November 14, 2018 Meeting; Work Plan.  Land Use 
Ordinances  
(Administrator’s Report to Committee Distributed on Friday, November 9, 2018) 
  
1. Call to order  
2. Approval of agenda  
3. Approval of minutes for November 14, 2018 
4. Public Comments – 3 minutes per person – not to exceed 30 minutes total 
5. Receipt of Information from non-committee Supervisors on Matters Noticed 
6. Sale of Tax Delinquent Property:  Report on October Sale 
7. Land Conservation/Land and Water Resources 

• Presentation on Land and Water Resources Management Planning Process 
and Update – Tim Ritten, LWRD Director 

 Parks, Recreation, Trails and Forestry: 
• Recommendation on Demand of Friends of Stower Seven Lakes Trail to 

County Reconsider County Submission of Trail Plan to Department of 
Natural Resources  

• Update on Big Butternut Dam 
8. Planning and Zoning: 
9. Pending Conditional Use Permit Applications 

• Conditional Use Permit - Public Hearing and Determination - 10:00 a.m. 
 
Conditional Use Application of SCOTT & YVETTE MAREK request a 
Conditional Use via Article 10.4.9(c)(5) of the Polk County Comprehensive 
Land Use Ordinance for automotive repair and sales and outdoor storage 
including multiple unlicensed and inoperable vehicles.    Property affected 
is: 2296 State Hwy 35, part of the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ & SW ¼ of the NW ¼ 
lying west of Gandy Dancer Trail, except the north 311’, Sec 9/T35N/R17W, 
Town of Milltown, Parcel # 040-00210-0000. 
 
Following the public hearing, the Committee will deliberate and make a 
determination on the application for conditional use permit 
 
   
 
 
 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

 

 

 
10.   Recommendations on Proposed Amendments to Land Use Ordinances 

• Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendments Recommendation: 
 
Proposed Amendments to the Polk County Comprehensive Land Use – 
Amend Private Road Setback Provisions 
 

             Chapter 18 Subdivision – Removal of Road Standards 
 

Shoreland Protection Zoning Ordinances – Amend Private Road Setback 
Provisions; and Revise Conditional Use Provisions and Expand Allowed 
Conditional Uses   
                            

11. Committee Calendar and  Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming 
Meetings 

12. Development/Consideration of 2019 Work Plan 
13. Adjourn 

 

Items on the agenda not necessarily presented in the order listed. This meeting is open 
to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-
485-9226) at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable 
accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 

 
 



1 

 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S         

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

MINUTES 
Environmental Services Committee 

Government Center County Board Room 
        100 Polk County Plaza Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

              9:00 A.M. Wednesday, November 14, 2018 

Member Attendance  

Attendee Name Title Status 
Kim O’Connell Chair Present 
Tracy LaBlanc Supervisor Present 
Doug Route Supervisor Present 
Brad Olson Vice Chair Absent 
Jim Edgell Supervisor Present 
Lyle Doolittle FSA Representative Present 
  
Also present were Stephanie Fansler, Deputy County Clerk; Jeff Fuge, Interim County 
Administrator; Malia Malone, Assistant Corporation Counsel, and members of the public and of 
the press.                               

Meeting called to order by Chair O’Connell at 9:01 A.M. 

Approval of Agenda- Chair O’Connell called for a motion to approve the agenda. Motion 
(Edgell/Route) to approve the agenda carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Approval of Minutes – Chair O’Connell called for a motion to approve the minutes of the 
October 24, 2018 meeting.  Motion (LaBlanc/Route) to approve the Minutes of October 24, 
2018 carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Public Comment –2 public comments received by committee.  

Receipt of Information from non-committee Supervisors on Matters Noticed – none. 
 
Chair O’Connell recognized Mark Gossman, Forester for receipt of information.  Gossman 
presented the 2019  Forestry Work Plan to the Committee and gave a status report on the 
Grant Funding project in the Town of Sterling.   Discussion.  Motion (LaBlanc/Route) to approve 
and recommend passage of the Forestry Work Plan, to the full County Board carried by 
unanimous voice vote of the committee members present. 
 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 

 

The Committee received the Administrator’s report from Jeff Fuge, Interim Administrator.  Fuge 
recognized Todd Miller, representative of the Polk County Snowmobile Council, to explain the 
name selection of Sawmill Trail for the trail between Clayton and Clear Lake.   
 
Consideration of revisions to the Gandy Dancer Trail.  Discussion.  Motion (Route/LaBlanc) to 
forward this issue to the full County Board for recommendation to the ES Committee passed by 
unanimous consensus of the committee members present. 
 
Res. No 18-33 Recommendation of the Town of St. Croix Falls Ordinance Amendment – 
Ordinance 18-04. Discussion.  Motion (Route/LaBlanc) to approve and recommend to the full 
County Board carried by unanimous voice vote of the committee members present. 
 
Development and Adoption of Committee Rule on Public Hearing and Determination Process on 
Applications for Conditional Use Permits.   Interim Corporation Counsel Malone addressed the 
Committee on the need for written procedures and the importance of following the 
procedures. 
Chair O’Connell called for a break at 9:50 A. M.  Chair O’Connell called the meeting back in 
session at 10.00 A.M. 
Public Hearing 
Conditional Use Application of Scott and Yvette Marek. Chair O’Connell opened the Public 
Hearing at 10:00 A.M. Jason Kjeseth, Zoning Administrator presented a staff report.  Chair 
O’Connell asked for public comments.  Scott Marek offered information as to why he requested 
the Conditional Use Permit.  Chair O’Connell called for public comments.  Two public comments 
received.   Chair O’Connell declared the Public Hearing closed at 10:37 A.M. Discussion. 
Committee wants more information. Motion (Edgell/Route) to postpone the Public Hearing on 
the application for conditional use permit until November 28, 2018. 
 
Proposed Amendments to the Polk County Comprehensive Land Use, Chapter 18 Subdivision, 
and Shoreland Protection Zoning Ordinances.  Jason Kjeseth, Zoning Administrator presented a 
staff report.   Six public comments received.  Kjeseth then read into the minutes 15 e-
mails/letters as exhibits 55 – 70. Chair O’ Connell declare the Public Hearing closed 12:07 P.M. 
 
Chair O’Connell called for a break at 12:07 P. M.  Chair O’Connell called the meeting back in 
session at 12:21 P.M. Motion (LaBlanc/Route) to continue this Public Hearing until the next 
scheduled ESC meeting to run consecutively with other items.   
 
Chair O’Connell called for a break at 11:37 A. M.  Chair O’Connell called the meeting back in 
session at 11:58 A.M. Discussion.  By consensus of the members present, the committee 
recommended deferring the development and recommendations concerning the enactment of 
the proposed amendments to the zoning ordinances until November 28, 2018. 
 



3 

 

Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings: Forester’s report, Woodley property, 
Resolution regarding trail name change, continuation of Public Hearing,   Lime Quarry audit report 
(early in 2019) 
Motion (LaBlanc/Edgell) to adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote of the committee 
members present. Chair O’Connell declared meeting adjourned at 12:47 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Stephanie Fansler                             
Deputy Polk County Clerk 





$ nrNEs BAcH
Pines Bach LLP

122 W Washington Ave, Ste 900
Madison, Wl 53703

ó08.251.0101 Phone
ó08.251.2883 Fax
pinesbach.com

Attorney Christa O. Westerberg
cweste rb erg(@ p i n esb a ch. co m

Attorney Aaron G. Dumas
adumac@Binejbaclt cam

November 9,2018
Bu E-møil ønd U.S. møil

Dean Johansen
Chairman, Polk County Board of
Supervisors
clcan"i ooli<.wi.us
100 Polk County PIaza, Suite 170

Balsam Lake, WI 54810

Sharon Jorgenson
shalon. (q)co.

Polk County Clerk
100 Polk County Plaza, Suite 11"0

Balsam Lake, WI54810

Re: Stower Seven Lakes State Trail

Dear Chairman Johansen and Clerk Jorgenson:

We represent the Friends of Stower Seven Lakes State Trail, Inc., a nonprofit

corporation whose members live and/or recreate in Polk County. We write to urge the

Pol-k County Board of Supervisors ("the Board") to reconsider its decision to authorize

the submitrior, of a proposed master plan for the Stower Seven Lakes State Trail ("the

Trail") to the WisconsinDepartment of Natural Resources ("DNR") fot final approval,

purr"â as Resolution No. fS-ß at the Board's October 1,6,2018 meeting. We believe that

ihe Board's decision, as amended and approved, overlooked the requirements of the

law in several respects.

First, constraints of federal law d.o not allow the conversion of the Trail to motorized

use. The Trail was created using American Recovery and Reinvestment Act ("ARRA")

funding earmarked for non-motorized trail projects, and motorized use is therefore

generally prohibited , See 23 U.S.C. g 217(h). Exceptions to this prohibition are only

o@o



Dean Johansen
Sharon Jorgenson
November 9,2018
Page2 Pines Bach LLP

granted in exceptional circumstances, only after careful consideration to make sure that
nonmotorized users and adjacent or nearby property owners are not unduly impaired,
only when other reasonable options for users of motorized vehicles have been
exhausted, and only on limited segments of motorized trails. The proposed motorized
uses here clearly are not viable under this exception. Further, although we understand
that the Wisconsin Department of Transportation ("DOT") has communicated to you
that the Board may also be able to effect this change upon repayment of some $599,000
to the federal government, we do not believe that the potential amount of repayment is
so limited under the terms of the ARRA grant or that this repayment remedy is even
clearly available at all.

Second, we must remind you that an injunction against general motorized use of the
Trail remains in place, pursuant to the decision of the Polk County Circuit Court in
Friend of L,O.G, Greentuøy,Inc. a,WisconsinDepørtment of Natural Resources, Circuit Court
Case No. 07-CV-177.

Third, the plan and its development did not comply with Wis. Admin. Code Ch. NR 44,

to the extent practicable or otherwise. For instance, the City of Amery was not included
in the planning process, in clear violation of S NR aa,}a(\@), nor was the amendment
preceded by the data-gathering and analyses required by $ NR 44.04(7).

Fourth, because Resolution 75-18 requires funding but does not state its source or
amount, it violates Article 3.1".c of County Ordinance 17-1.6.

Fifth, there was no public notice that the Board would do anything other than approve
the plan presented by the subcommittee, and certainly no notice that the Board wouid
adopt a highly controversial amendment to add ATV/UTV use to the plan, despite that
amendment having been prepared ahead of time. The Board's action violated the Open
Meetings Law's requirements for reasonable notice, Wis. Stat. 919,84(2), as interpreted
by Støte ex rel. Buswell a. Tomøh Areø School District,2007 WI71,732 N.W.2d 804.

Finally, pursuant both to law and to the Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU")
between the County and the DNR, the Trail's development, constructiory and
maintenance must meet or exceed DNR trail standards and ensure the safety and
compatibility of Trail uses. Those standards cannot be met if motorized uses are
permittecl on the Trail.

Therefore, we ask the Board to place reconsideration of this resolution on the agenda for
the Board's November L3, 201"8 meeting. Should the Board not reconsider its decision,



Dean Johansen
Sharon Jorgenson
November 9,2018
Page 3 Pines Bach LLP

our client will be required to consider other remedies to address the Board's action. We
would prefer to resolve this matter cooperatively, so please let us know if you would
like to discuss this letter or if you have any questions.

Very truly yours,

PINES BACH LLP

Christa O. Westerberg
Aaron G. Dumas

cc:

Jeffrey Fuge, County Corporation Counsel

i ef tf (ÐE: ç ü Ç)lk. u,L1¿f

Friends of Stower Seven Lakes State Trail












































































































































































































































































































































	Agenda-ES-12-12-2018
	ESCminutes11-14-2018
	ESC 12-12-18 Meeting packet insert
	TaxSaleReport_October 2018
	FS7LT-Letter 1130_Reconsider
	WDNRLetter_Stower Seven Lakes Trail Plan - Nov 30th 2018

	Zoning Ordinance Info Dec 2018 mtgs
	Workplan ES 2018

